
10/12/15 KJS 

 

 DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA 

Tuesday, Oct. 20, 2015  @  6:30 p.m. 
111 S. 1st Street, Dayton, WA 99328 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

2. ROLL CALL 

3. MINUTES  - Approval of 9/15/2015 Meeting Minutes - attached 

Action - Approval of minutes for 9/15/15 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING –  

2015 Comprehensive Plan & Development Regulations Docket 

See attached memo to the Planning Commission with summary list of the 2015 Docket 

5. PREVIOUS BUSINESS –  

a. Commission discussion - 2015 CP & DR Docket 

b. Recommendation to the City Council regarding the 2015 CP & DR Docket 

Action – Recommendation to the City Council  

6. NEW BUSINESS – None 

7. OTHER - None 

8. ADJOURN MEETING   

Next Scheduled Meeting –November 17, 2015 @ 6:30 pm  

Attachments 



10/14/15 KJS  Page 1 of 3 

DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Tuesday, September 15, 2015  @  6:30 p.m. 

111 S. 1st Street, Dayton, WA 99328. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER by Chair, Joe Huether at 6:30 pm 

2. ROLL CALL: Joe Huether, Chair; Greg Abramson, Vice Chair; Candace Jones and, 
Carol Rahn. present.  
Also in attendance -  
Karen Scharer, Dayton Planning Director  

3. MINUTES - Joe moved to approve the 6/16/2015 Meeting Minutes.  The 
commission voted to approve the minutes.  

4. PREVIOUS BUSINESS – None 

5. NEW BUSINESS –  

a. 2015 Comprehensive Plan Docket 

Karen presented the Final 2015 Docket approved by City Council on Sept. 14, 2015 as 
follows: 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN   

CP15-002 – Signage Policy & Wayfinding Signage Program 
Action: Add policy to support wayfinding signage & add wayfinding signage for public places.  
Why: Improve the look of the city and information/attractions for visitors to our 
community. 
Reference: Economic Development Element 

CP15-003 Utilities Element    
Action: Update the Utilities Element background information and add Water Systems Plan & 
Solid Waste plans as augmentation to the Comprehensive Plan.  
Why: Established goals, policies and objectives of City  
Reference: Utilities Element 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS  

DR15-001 Pets and livestock allowed 
Action: remove miniature goats, potbellied pigs, roosters in residential zones 
chickens – reduce the number allowed to 6 max.  
Purpose: Public & Staff complaints regarding pets & small production animals 
Reference 11-01.050, 11-03.020 & 11-03.100 

  



10/14/15 KJS  Page 2 of 3 

DR15-002 Building Height  
Action: Building height for sloped lots - clarify height limits 
Purpose: Current definition does not clearly identify max. height for buildings on 
sloped property.  
Reference: DMC 11-01.050 & 11-03-030 

DR15-003 - Swimming Pools, Man-made Ponds, Spas, and Hot Tub 
Action: Add fencing and setback requirements for swimming pools, spas, hot tubs and 
ponds 
Purpose: Public safety for children  
Reference: 11-03-030 NEW H. 

DR15-004 Kennel & Cattery  
Action: Revise Kennel & Cattery definitions for code consistency  
Why: Current definitions are not consistent.  DMC 6-8.04 & 11.01.050 Definition Conflicts 
Reference: DMC 6-8.04 & 11-01.050  

DR15-005 Variance correction 
Action: Correct reference from “060” to “050” – condition for granting variances 
Reference: 11-10.060 

DR15-006 Vacation rental  
Action: Add definition and use to residential zones 
Why: Clarify use is allowed, currently the code does not address.  Some communities 
prohibit or restrict the use.   
Reference: DMC 11-01.050 & 11-03.020 

DR15-007 - Transitional uses in CC & FC for E. Clay St. 
Action: Add overlay zone along north side of E Clay St. from S. 1st St to properties on the 
east of S. 4th St. 
Why: Reduce number of current nonconforming single family homes, allow conversion of 
structures back to residential, and encourage occupancy of buildings by expansion of uses 
permitted.  
Reference: NEW DMC 11-07.040 

DR15-008 -  Hotel Use in FC    
Action: Allow hotels in the FC zone.   
Why: Currently motels are allowed, but hotels are not allowed.  The Best Western was 
defined as a “motel” to allow the construction of the building.  Allowing hotels in the FC 
zone eliminates confusion as to whether Best Western is a permitted or non-conforming use 
and allows hotels on the west side of town.    
Reference: DMC 11-04.020 

DR15-009- Volcanic Hazards  
Action: DMC 17-04 – Eliminate reference to “volcanic hazards” 
Why: Lack of Volcanic evidence/activity in Columbia County area.   
Reference: DMC 17-04 
 



10/14/15 KJS  Page 3 of 3 

b. 2015 Docket Public Hearing Schedule 
 
The commission discussed the schedule for the 2015 update and agreed to scheduling 

the public hearing on Oct. 20, 2015.  If needed, the public hearing will be continued 

to October 21, 2015 for additional testimony. 

TIMELINE: 
SEPT 14 City Council approved final docket 
SEPT 15   Planning Commission Meeting - Introduced docket  
SEPT 17 Notice for SEPA DNS, 9/20/2015 Public Hearing & GMA 60 Day 

Notice Mailed 
SEPT 23  Minimum 60 day Notice to Commerce before final Council Action  
SEPT 24        Notice Published in the Waitsburg Times Newspaper    
OCT    8 Last day to file SEPA Appeal on DNS 
OCT  20 Planning Commission Public Hearing & Recommendation to the City 

Council with continuation to Oct. 21st if needed. 
Nov. 23 City Council action on PC Recommendation of the Final 2015 Docket  
 (CC public hearing, if requested for further testimony & consideration 

of changes) 

6. OTHER - Letter from Marcene Hendrickson, et. al.  The commission received the 

letter regarding city standards for road improvements when subdividing.  

7. ADJOURN MEETING:   

Joe moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:40 pm. 

Next Scheduled Meeting –Oct. 20, 2015 @ 6:30 pm  

Signed by: 

  

Joe Huether, Planning Commission Chair Date Signed 

 

Karen J Scharer, Planning Director Date Signed 

 



Date: October 14, 2015 

TO:  Dayton Planning Commission and Mayor Craig George 

FM:  Karen Scharer, Planning Director 

RE: Staff Recommendations for the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and 

Development Regulations Update  

 

A. Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning Commission hereby recommends that the City Council approve all docket items 

as listed with the minor changes and factual corrections offered by the Planning Department 

at the October 20, 2015 public hearing and which are contained in the two draft ordinances 

(Comprehensive Plan and Development Regulations) both dated October 14, 2015.   

B. Planning Commission Findings and Conclusions proposed: 

1. The Dayton Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on October 20, 2015 
for the Final Docketed Amendments; and considered best available science, 
alternatives used by other jurisdictions, written correspondence and testimony 
submitted prior to the close of the public hearing.  

2. The City has considered the "Minimum Guidelines" as set forth in Chapter 365-190 
WAC to update Critical Areas, DMC Chapter 17-04. 

3. The proposed development regulations are necessary to protect the health, safety 
and general welfare of the community and its residents. 

4. The proposed 2015 comprehensive plan amendments and development regulations 
have been found to be consistent with the comprehensive plan and comprehensive 
plan amendments. 

5. The amendments and additions to the comprehensive plan and development 
regulations have been found consistent with State and federal laws. 

 

C. 2015 Final Docket Summary is as follows: 

CP15-002 – Signage Policy & Wayfinding Signage Program 
Add policy to support wayfinding signage & add wayfinding signage for public places for the 
purpose to improve the look of the city and information/attractions for visitors and residents. 

CP15-003 Utilities Element    
Update the Utilities Element background information and add Water Systems Plan & Solid 
Waste Plans as augmentation to the Comprehensive Plan establishing goals, policies and 
objectives of City.  

DR15-001 Pets and livestock allowed 

Remove miniature goats and potbellied pigs as pets; prohibit roosters; reduce the number of 

small production animals allowed in the UR zone; and revise standards for housing of pets and 

small production animals.   After the revisions to the zoning code in 2013, the City received 

numerous complaints regarding pets and small production animals.   

  



10/14/15 KS  P 2 

DR15-002 Building height  

Add provisions to calculate building height consistently on sloped lots, as the current definition(s) 

do not identify how maximum height is determined for buildings on sloped property.  

DR15-003   Swimming pools, man-made ponds, spas, and hot tubs 

Add fencing and setback requirements for swimming pools, spas, hot tubs and ponds to 

increase public safety and reduce safety risks for children.  

DR15-004 Kennel & cattery  

Revise kennel & cattery definitions for code consistency.  Dayton Municipal Code (DMC) 6-8.04 

and DMC 11.01.050 definitions are inconsistent. 

DR15-005 Variance correction 

Correct reference in DMC 11-10.060 from “060” to “050” for conditions to grant a variance. 

DR15-006 Vacation rental  

Add as a definition and as a use in residential zones to clarify how vacation rental is allowed.  

DR15-007 - Transitional uses in the Central Commercial (CC) and Fringe Commercial (FC) 

Zones for East Clay Street. 

Add the “Clay Street Transitional District (CSTD) Overlay Zone” for properties along the north 

side of E. Clay St. from S. 1st St. to properties on the east of S. 4th.  CSTD will reduce number of 

current nonconforming single family homes by allowing residences as a primary allowed use, 

and the CSTD will encourage occupancy of buildings by expanding uses permitted.  

DR15-008 -  Hotel Use in Fringe Commercial Zone (FC)   

Allow hotels in the FC zone eliminating confusion as to how existing hotels and motels in this 

zone are defined under DMC 11-01.050.  

DR15-009- Volcanic Hazards    

Eliminate reference and requirements for “volcanic hazards” in DMC 17-04 as there are no 

known hazards required to be mitigated or avoided associated with development or use of 

land. 

 

D. Background: 

1. The 2015 Docket contains proposed amendments which are being considered by 

the City under the umbrella of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and Development 

Regulations Update.  The final docket was approved by the City Council on 

September 14, 2015 at their regularly scheduled meeting.   

2. The City as lead agency issued a State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) threshold 

determination of non-significance (DNS) on September 17, 2015, stating that the 

series of amendments docketed with the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and 

Development Regulations Update would not have a probable significant impact on 

the environment.  The SEPA comment and appeal period ended on October 8, 2015. 

No further action was required by the city. 

  



10/14/15 KS  P 3 

3. Public notice of the SEPA DNS and public hearing was issued concurrently.  The 

Waitsburg Times published notice on September 24, 2015.  Mailing of notice to 

agencies, tribes, community groups and other interested parties occurred on 

September 17, 2015.  Additionally, notice of the proposed CSTD and a copy of the 

CSTD Docket DR15-007 was mailed to all property owners within the proposed 

overlay district on September 18, 2015.   

 

E. Comments Received as of 10/14/2015 (attached): 

1. Tim Walsh, DNR, RE: DR15-009, 9/4/15 

2. Lisa Caldwell, Columbia County, RE: DR15-009, 9/17/15 

3. Lisa Caldwell, Columbia County, RE: DR15-009, 9/17/15 

4. Steve Martin, Salmon Recovery Board, RE: DR15-001, 9/17/15 

5. Howard Boggs, Anderson Perry, RE: CP15-003, 10/14/15 

 

F. Draft Ordinances of the 2015 CP and DR update: 

Enclosed are the two draft ordinances for your consideration in formulating a 

recommendation to the City Council regarding the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and 

Development Regulations update.  The draft ordinances reflect comments received by 

Howard Boggs of Anderson Perry, the City’s contracted engineering firm and other minor 

rewording for code clarification written by city staff.    

The draft development regulations ordinance is formatted by code section rather than by 

docket section.   

Ordinance attachments (labeled as exhibits) are available as follows: 

Comprehensive Plan 

EXHIBIT A - Dayton Wayfinding Signage Design Policy  

http://www.daytonwa.com/images/docs/plans/comp-plan-updates/CP%20DOCKET%20Items%202015-9-16.pdf 

Also in your 9/15/15 packet. 

EXHIBIT B – 2015 Water System Plan (WSP).  The September 2015 Version of the WSP is scheduled to 

be published on the city website 10/19/15.  If the copy is not available on the website, a hard copy 

will be made available at City Hall.  An April 2015 draft is currently posted on the webpage. 

http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/water-system-plans 

EXHIBIT C - 2015 Comprehensive Solid Waste and Moderate Risk Waste Management Plan 

(SWMP).  The SWMP is scheduled to be published on the city website 10/16/15.  A hard 

copy is also available at City Hall. 

http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/city-adopted-plans 

 

  

http://www.daytonwa.com/images/docs/plans/comp-plan-updates/CP%20DOCKET%20Items%202015-9-16.pdf
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/water-system-plans
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/city-adopted-plans


10/14/15 KS  P 4 

Development Regulations 

EXHIBIT 1 - Clay Street Transitional District (CSTD) Overlay Zoning Map 

http://www.daytonwa.com/images/docs/plans/regulation-draft-updates/DR%20DOCKET%20Items%202015-9-16.pdf 

See page 14 of pdf.  The map is also available with your 9/15/15 packet.  

 

Attached: 

Comments received as listed in Section E above. 

Draft CP ORD - An Ordinance Adopting New And Amended 2015 Comprehensive 
Plan Policies, Text, And Maps In Compliance With RCW 36.70A (GMA); And 
Amending Ordinance 1873.   

DRAFT DR ORD - An Ordinance Adopting New And Amended 2015 Development 
Regulations, Title 6-Animal Control, Title 11-Zoning, Title 17-Critical Areas and Title 
20-Comprehensive Plan  in Compliance With RCW 36.70A (GMA), and Amending 
Ordinances 1661, 1841, 1873A.   

http://www.daytonwa.com/images/docs/plans/regulation-draft-updates/DR%20DOCKET%20Items%202015-9-16.pdf
http://www.daytonwa.com/images/docs/plans/regulation-draft-updates/DR%20DOCKET%20Items%202015-9-16.pdf


From: WALSH, TIM (DNR) on behalf of DNR RE GEOLOGY HAZARDS
To: "Karen Scharer"
Subject: RE: Dayton - Critical Areas - Geologic Hazard code amendment
Date: Friday, September 4, 2015 4:44:36 PM

Hi Karen,
I think he is right that Dayton does not have a known hazard from any of the phenomena in that
 list, although Dayton and all of eastern Washington have an airfall hazard. I suspect you could
 say the same about mine hazards as well. Rather than amend the ordinance though, you could
 just say that no volcano hazard areas have been identified and let it go at that.
Regards,
Tim Walsh
 
Timothy J. Walsh
Chief Hazards Geologist
L.E.G. 355
Department of Natural Resources
Division of Geology and Earth Resources
"Washington Geological Survey"
P.O. Box 47007
Olympia WA 98504-7007
(360)902-1432; (360)791-3130 (cell)
 
 
 

From: Karen Scharer [mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com] 
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2015 2:45 PM
To: DNR RE GEOLOGY HAZARDS <dnrgeologyhazards@dnr.wa.gov>
Subject: Dayton - Critical Areas - Geologic Hazard code amendment
 
Hi Tim –
 
A Dayton City Council member has requested a code revision that would eliminate the specific
 reference to volcanic hazards in our critical areas code. As such, I’m adding this amendment to our
 2015 Docket.  From what I can tell from DNR maps, there isn’t a hazard from “pyroclastic flows, lava
 flows, debris avalanche, and inundation by debris flows, lahars, mudflows, or related flooding
 resulting from volcanic activity”. 
 
Given Dayton’s position in relation to volcanic hazards such as noted above, is this an amendment
 that you would support?     
 
Thank you in advance for your assistance.
 
Karen J Scharer, AICP
Planning Director
Direct Line & Cell  509-540-6747

mailto:tim.walsh@dnr.wa.gov
mailto:dnrgeologyhazards@dnr.wa.gov
mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com


From: Karen Scharer
To: "Lisa Caldwell"
Cc: Craig George
Subject: RE: Dayton 2015 CP & DR Docket Amendments - SEPA DNS & Public Hearing Notice
Date: Thursday, September 17, 2015 3:57:44 PM

Lisa –
 
Thank you for your comments.  They will be included with the comments on the 2015 Docket and
 forwarded to the Planning Commission.  However, our 2015 Docket does not include any new
 amendments regarding earthquake hazards.  Please note that our code for Geologic Earthquake
 Hazards is very similar to that of Columbia County.
 
Beginning in 2016, the City will begin to embark on a major update to the Comprehensive Plan
 where information such as you have provided will play an important role.  I am hopeful that you’ll
 be able to assist the City in developing the background data for establishing or revising goals,
 policies and objectives in the area of emergency management and hazards.   Also in 2016 we will be
 looking at updating our code in reference to implementation of Building Code requirements and
 permits (Title 5). 
 
Karen J Scharer, AICP
Planning Director
Direct & Cell:  509-540-6747
111 S 1st St., Dayton WA 99328
 

City Hall  509-382-2361
City Fax  509-382-2539
 
 

Disclaimer: Public documents and records are available to the public as provided under the Washington State Public Records Act
 (RCW 42.56).  This e-mail may be considered subject to the Public Records Act and may be disclosed to a third-party requestor.
 

From: Lisa Caldwell [mailto:Lisa_Caldwell@co.columbia.wa.us] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 3:35 PM
To: 'Karen Scharer' <kscharer@daytonwa.com>
Cc: 'craiggeorge20@gmail.com' <craiggeorge20@gmail.com>
Subject: RE: Dayton 2015 CP & DR Docket Amendments - SEPA DNS & Public Hearing Notice
 

Karen,

In regards to your docket amendments I would just like to make sure everyone is aware of the
 information provided below in the Columbia County Hazard Mitigation Plan for the City of Dayton
 before they move forward.

Columbia County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Earthquake

There are no recorded occurrences of earthquakes significantly impacting the city of Dayton;

mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com
mailto:Lisa_Caldwell@co.columbia.wa.us
mailto:craiggeorge20@gmail.com


 however, some minimal shaking has been felt as a result of larger earthquakes elsewhere.  The City

 has 10% chance of exceeding a 7-8% pga in the next 50 years (see Figure 5.7).[1]  Dayton does not
 have any differing issues or levels of risk associated with this hazard than Columbia County as a
 whole. 

Value of Resources At Risk

Unreinforced masonry (URM) structures and unreinforced chimneys of homes will likely be damaged
 in the event of an earthquake. There are several publicly accessible unreinforced masonry
 structures in Dayton in addition to the numerous homes and other buildings throughout the City
 with unreinforced chimneys. Damaged or collapsed chimneys could result in the secondary hazard
 of fire. Nonstructural damage caused by falling and swinging objects may be considerable after any
 magnitude earthquake. Damage to some older, more fragile bridges and land failure causing minor
 slides along roadways may isolate some residents.
In Dayton, nearly all of the downtown structures are assumed to be unreinforced masonry including
 the County Courthouse, city hall, the hospital, Blue Mountain Counseling, and the High School. 
 These structures were built prior to the inclusion of articles for seismic stability in the Uniform
 Building Codes in 1972.   The number and value of unreinforced masonry homes or homes with
 masonry chimneys in Dayton is unknown, but estimated to include at least 125 buildings.
 
 
Lisa Caldwell
Director
Columbia County Emergency Management
Columbia County Public Safety Communications
lisa_caldwell@co.columbia.wa.us
Office: 509-382-3928
Cell: 509-629-2987 
Fax: 509-382-4724
 
 
 
 

From: Karen Scharer [mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 12:49 PM
To: kmclain@agr.wa.gov; Kelly.Cooper@doh.wa.gov; sepacenter@dnr.wa.gov;
 dahp.separeview@dahp.wa.gov; randy.kline@parks.wa.gov; efheinitz@doc1.wa.gov;
 sepaunit@ecy.wa.gov; Terri.Sinclair-Olson@dshs.wa.gov; SEPAdesk@dfw.wa.gov;
 agburnteamero@ecy.wa.gov; planning@ctuir.org; Herb G Bessey
Cc: Andrew Woods; COMMERCE DAYTON; Jennie Dickinson; Jon Smiley; Kim Lyonnais; Martha Lanman;
 Lisa Caldwell; Mike Smith; Rocky Miller; Silvestre Benavides; Steve Martin; Thomas B Schirm (DFW);
 rturner@ccfiredistrict3.org; Paua Moisio; Doug Johnson; Terry Bruegman; Charlotte Baker; - WWUB
 News; 'Ken Graham'; jcostello@daytonwa.com; tcole@daytonwa.com; 'Brad McMasters'
Subject: Dayton 2015 CP & DR Docket Amendments - SEPA DNS & Public Hearing Notice
 
Agencies, Tribes & Community Groups -
 
2015 Docket documents attached for your review:

·         Summary of the 2015 Docketed Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and



From: Lisa Caldwell
To: "Karen Scharer"
Cc: "craiggeorge20@gmail.com"
Subject: RE: Dayton 2015 CP & DR Docket Amendments - SEPA DNS & Public Hearing Notice
Date: Thursday, September 17, 2015 3:38:23 PM

Karen-
Sorry -  I appended the wrong information---Here is the correct information.  This should help if
 there is any additional questions.
 

Volcano

The city of Dayton does not have any differing levels of risk associated with this hazard than
 Columbia County as a whole.

Value of Resources at Risk

The city of Dayton has no assets at direct risk of being impacted by a volcanic eruption. However, the
 secondary effects of ash and airborne particulates may have varying degrees of negative effects. 
 Damages to property will likely be limited to vehicles and cleanup costs.  Additionally, residents of
 Dayton will be at risk to health problems associated with the respiratory effects of breathing
 airborne particulates.
 
 
Lisa Caldwell
Director
Columbia County Emergency Management
Columbia County Public Safety Communications
lisa_caldwell@co.columbia.wa.us
Office: 509-382-3928
Cell: 509-629-2987 
Fax: 509-382-4724
 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Karen Scharer [mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 12:49 PM
To: kmclain@agr.wa.gov; Kelly.Cooper@doh.wa.gov; sepacenter@dnr.wa.gov;
 dahp.separeview@dahp.wa.gov; randy.kline@parks.wa.gov; efheinitz@doc1.wa.gov;
 sepaunit@ecy.wa.gov; Terri.Sinclair-Olson@dshs.wa.gov; SEPAdesk@dfw.wa.gov;
 agburnteamero@ecy.wa.gov; planning@ctuir.org; Herb G Bessey
Cc: Andrew Woods; COMMERCE DAYTON; Jennie Dickinson; Jon Smiley; Kim Lyonnais; Martha Lanman;
 Lisa Caldwell; Mike Smith; Rocky Miller; Silvestre Benavides; Steve Martin; Thomas B Schirm (DFW);
 rturner@ccfiredistrict3.org; Paua Moisio; Doug Johnson; Terry Bruegman; Charlotte Baker; - WWUB
 News; 'Ken Graham'; jcostello@daytonwa.com; tcole@daytonwa.com; 'Brad McMasters'
Subject: Dayton 2015 CP & DR Docket Amendments - SEPA DNS & Public Hearing Notice
 

mailto:Lisa_Caldwell@co.columbia.wa.us
mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com
mailto:craiggeorge20@gmail.com


From: Karen Scharer
To: "Karen Scharer"
Subject: FW: pets and livestock
Date: Wednesday, October 14, 2015 5:19:12 PM

From: Steve Martin [mailto:steve@snakeriverboard.org] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 3:43 PM
To: 'Karen Scharer' <kscharer@daytonwa.com>
Subject: RE: pets and livestock
 
No need to forward my question to planning commission as it wasn’t a comment or
 recommendation and it was answered to my satisfaction.  Thank you Karen.
 

From: Karen Scharer [mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 3:35 PM
To: 'Steve Martin'
Subject: RE: pets and livestock
 
Steve –
 
Thank you for your email. Your comments will be forwarded to the Planning Commission for their
 consideration.
 
To answer your question:

East of 5th at the south end of the City is zoned AR.  There are some proposed changes for the AR
 zoned area, however livestock will continue to be allowed at a permitted use.  Therefore, livestock
 in the AR zone will not become non-conforming under this proposed code revision.
 
The code revisions mostly have to do with the UR zoned areas of the city and provisions regarding
 pets.  Please see the proposed changes attached.
 
FYI - If you have email addresses for other groups that would be interested in commenting or
 attending the hearing, I would appreciate having their contact information. 
 
Best regards,
 
Karen J Scharer, AICP
Planning Director
Direct & Cell:  509-540-6747
 
111 S 1st St., Dayton WA 99328
 

City Hall  509-382-2361
City Fax  509-382-2539
 
 

Disclaimer: Public documents and records are available to the public as provided under the Washington State Public Records Act
 (RCW 42.56).  This e-mail may be considered subject to the Public Records Act and may be disclosed to a third-party requestor.
 

mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com
mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com


From: Steve Martin [mailto:steve@snakeriverboard.org] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 2:36 PM
To: 'Karen Scharer' <kscharer@daytonwa.com>
Subject: pets and livestock
 

I presume the area east of 5th street on the south end of town is excluded from the proposed
 regulation considering many houses up there already have cows, chickens and/or horses.  Does the
 proposed regulation “grandfather” existing uses or will those people have to remove their livestock?
 

From: Karen Scharer [mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 12:49 PM
To: kmclain@agr.wa.gov; Kelly.Cooper@doh.wa.gov; sepacenter@dnr.wa.gov;
 dahp.separeview@dahp.wa.gov; randy.kline@parks.wa.gov; efheinitz@doc1.wa.gov;
 sepaunit@ecy.wa.gov; Terri.Sinclair-Olson@dshs.wa.gov; SEPAdesk@dfw.wa.gov;
 agburnteamero@ecy.wa.gov; planning@ctuir.org; Herb G Bessey
Cc: Andrew Woods; COMMERCE DAYTON; Jennie Dickinson; Jon Smiley; Kim Lyonnais; Martha Lanman;
 Lisa Caldwell; Mike Smith; rocky_miller@co.columbia.wa.us; Silvestre Benavides; Steve Martin; Thomas
 B Schirm (DFW); rturner@ccfiredistrict3.org; Paua Moisio; Doug Johnson; Terry Bruegman; Charlotte
 Baker; - WWUB News; 'Ken Graham'; jcostello@daytonwa.com; tcole@daytonwa.com; 'Brad McMasters'
Subject: Dayton 2015 CP & DR Docket Amendments - SEPA DNS & Public Hearing Notice
 
Agencies, Tribes & Community Groups -
 
2015 Docket documents attached for your review:

·         Summary of the 2015 Docketed Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and
 Development Regulations (DR)

·         Notice of 10/20/16 Public Hearing / SEPA DNS
·         SEPA Checklist

 
More information is available at Dayton webpages:  
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/long-range-
planning/comprehensive-plan-draft-updates
 
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/long-range-
planning/development-regulations-draft-updates
 
Karen J Scharer, AICP
Planning Director
Direct Line & Cell  509-540-6747
kscharer@daytonwa.com
 
                                                                                          City of Dayton - 111 S. 1st Street - Dayton, WA 99328
                                                                                             City Hall  509-382-2361 -  City Fax  509-382-2539
                                                                                                                         www.daytonwa.com
 
Disclaimer: Public documents and records are available to the public as provided under the Washington State Public Records Act (RCW
 42.56).  This e-mail may be considered subject to the Public Records Act and may be disclosed to a third-party requestor.

 
 

mailto:steve@snakeriverboard.org
mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com
mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com
mailto:kmclain@agr.wa.gov
mailto:Kelly.Cooper@doh.wa.gov
mailto:sepacenter@dnr.wa.gov
mailto:dahp.separeview@dahp.wa.gov
mailto:randy.kline@parks.wa.gov
mailto:efheinitz@doc1.wa.gov
mailto:sepaunit@ecy.wa.gov
mailto:Terri.Sinclair-Olson@dshs.wa.gov
mailto:SEPAdesk@dfw.wa.gov
mailto:agburnteamero@ecy.wa.gov
mailto:planning@ctuir.org
mailto:rocky_miller@co.columbia.wa.us
mailto:rturner@ccfiredistrict3.org
mailto:jcostello@daytonwa.com
mailto:tcole@daytonwa.com
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/long-range-planning/comprehensive-plan-draft-updates
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/long-range-planning/comprehensive-plan-draft-updates
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/long-range-planning/development-regulations-draft-updates
http://www.daytonwa.com/inside-city-hall/departments/planning-department/long-range-planning/development-regulations-draft-updates
mailto:kscharer@daytonwa.com
http://www.daytonwa.com/


ensive P an

Comment IKS2]: lJpdale stâternents

e o r ì5 ì,^(oolþrl\on. ey s\-e¡ç-.' u.as ì*rlotl*/ i'' J'lo a*,1 1."s lt. ",- ar/c/rz( fo

)sìer^ Serru¿ç ap 
^Y.(\ 

0( a¡'¡'rovin ^lo

s

Jal, tQ\a

<f u',trr(,, on,/ ^'¡'g'nr(r"l ^
ar,1 (t)l^cîc+l { Our'¿re{e.t clay,ar/ Þvc P\f e (av'g\t'9 it- si t< {r¿w t¡ -lU /5

a*y ììn^øq S \I-(< YLc¡'' 7le S ç

þ /u Acrol

2015 Updatc to Lhe Comprehensive Plan

UTILITIES ELEMENT
lnventory and Assessment
This element provides discussion about public and non-public facilities and services within
of the City. _This element addresses the general and proposed location and capacity of all

existing and proposed utilities, including sewer, water, solid waste disposal and recvcling,
e l ectrica l, n atu ra l 

-qê 
s,ta n d te l eco m m u n i cati on s and-natu+algasJines.

Public-Owned Facilities and Services
The City provides sewer and water utilityservice within the Dayton corporate limits. These
utility services in-this area-are adequate in capacity to meet the six-year capital
improvement needs of Dayton. :this4€€€.rq€{+ake-lnte-eensideration-any-faetlityEqqillLor

service extensions into the UGA may be allowed subject to policies contained in the city's

before the citv could commit to providinq services. Me-eendueteC
th+eugh-otl+erlarê€essesFsue@eveleped-ì¡úith+he€suÐty

Sewer Systeml
The City of Dayton is served by a sewage treatment plant and collection system located in
an incorporated area west
sewer within its corporate

by northwest of the City limits. served þy

À os a.1 938.

by

Water
The C its Water

all

Com we an

hl. ¡r ¡ l, tir 0<

Áitr\o ,,,,

of

Citl' o¡ ¡;,t,,r', Conrprehensivc Plarr

tìcs lll45 Ord #1873 & Ord #

Utrlitics ElerÌent

l)age

Du" 1u t[" ou,r¿-f eor-].,1ìo- r{1¡.0 pla,lar,),.ure Strir-'y"^J ¿Êf/*n-l

/,*.for5.c /i*;1o,1 ío'J, â New h/¿^si{*u)t, Ooilr$Z ¡>lap ìe cuyr¿ ^!)-, un,/o,

A'uolrf ^.nt, 1À.s, p)r,rl, ¡v"tLl F¿0¿v¡ w.,e,¡/S,.^{u"" sy.')r* \t^,[)rùùar'nrr.'1g,

Karen
Text Box
Comments from Howard Boggs of Anderson Perry10/14/15



rese

2015 LJpdate to the Cornprehensive Plan

The plan includes prolected water demands for the next 20 vears (2014-2034), identifies

financial status of the water svstem, and proiected costs of the improvements. The area

water serv¡ce areas.

The City of Dayton's present water system currently provides domestic, commercial, and
industrial service to approximately 1,481 connections in and around the citv as of
2014.1É52-eenneetie dlhe-€i+y. Based upon three deep wells, a 2 million
gallon reservoir, a220 thousand gallon standpipe and extensive distribution lines, the
system provides clea

The three wells
million

production

producing a
itations restricts the Comment [KS3]: Check rvith AP

Comment [KS4]: Check VAP

Comment [KS5]: Check rv/AP

It

Well Depth

1,303 ft

Capacitv

624-lQO gpm

+11+1,100
-1J_0a1p12

Metered

yes

yes

yes

W

regardinq future sygtem ¡mprovements a There are physical limitations to
the system that must be noted. Of paramount impodance is working with the elevation
parameters @to ensure adequate water pressures. The
Citv will provide new water service to customers above 1,675 feet mean sea level (MSL)
elevation and below 1.560 feet MSL onlv if a new pressure zone is created. To create the

rc.S_Utrcd @@eva+ien-e+-f$S0
feet will requlre-pressr.rrepumps-ìf-adequate-pressuredeliveryis-to beobtained,

Also, extensions of water lines west along the SR 12 corridors will be faced with extreme
water pressures requiring pressure-reducing devices to be used. Long line extensions will
also have to be carefully planned to discourage development of looped systems and
oppose liner systems (dead-end) to avoid potential stale water problems.

The Grtyof Dayten hasæornpleted=n-extensive-update onìt+eNistingWaterSystem Plan-

Fn^ì rw\a',1- ¿. p resst, r ¿
rçclue\r-r¡ vo\v. 6oj *or-
-f-l^. o ì, í,-nlry ry\ p I e, a *"1
-l/ . oo,.. ., { iu,,, ]6 f 1 a

\O^< e or bc^ì)ø/ir^3 
_

('it1' o l' Da¡'torr Cornprchcnsi vc' Plan

lìcs #ll45.Orul #1873&Ord #

Lltilitics Elcrrcnt

Page

I]t' 3.iq
oY'.., "\elY



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 1 of 10 

 

CITY OF DAYTON WASHINGTON 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING NEW AND AMENDED 2015 COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN POLICIES, TEXT, AND MAPS IN COMPLIANCE WITH RCW 36.70A 

(GMA); AND AMENDING ORDINANCE 1873.   

WHEREAS, the City Council did consider the following findings, and having fully considered 

all agency comments, public testimony and the entire public record; and, 

WHEREAS, these amendments were identified as docket items as part of a series of 
amendments considered by the City under the umbrella of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and 
Development Regulations Update.  The final docket was approved by the City Council on September 
14, 2015 at their regularly scheduled meeting; and,  

WHEREAS, the purposes of the amendments in this ordinance are: 

CP15-002 – Signage Policy & Wayfinding Signage Program 
Add policy to support wayfinding signage & add wayfinding signage for public places for the 
purpose to improve the look of the city and information/attractions for visitors and residents. 

CP15-003 Utilities Element    
Update the Utilities Element background information and add Water Systems Plan & Solid 
Waste Plans as augmentation to the Comprehensive Plan establishing goals, policies and 
objectives of City.  

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2015, the City of Dayton issued to the Department of Commerce 
its 60 day notice of intent to adopt the 2015 Docket for Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Regulations, amendments; and, 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments have been found consistent with the comprehensive 

plan and comprehensive plan amendments and in compliance with Chapter 36.70A RCW, Growth 

Management Act (GMA); and, 

WHEREAS, the City was the lead agency as defined in the State Environmental Policy Act 

(SEPA) and issued a threshold determination of non-significance (DNS) on September 17, 2015 

stating that the series of amendments with the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and Development 

Regulations Update would not have a probable significant impact on the environment.  The 

comment and appeal period ended on October 8, 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, public outreach to the community was performed.  The public was invited to 

submit individual docket applications.  Newspaper notice, notice to agencies, tribes and 

community groups; and posting of notice and docket items on the City website and City Hall was 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 2 of 10 

accomplished.  Key stakeholders identified by the jurisdiction were also invited, to review and 

comment on the amendments; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Dayton Planning Commission conducted a public meeting on September 15, 

2015, where they were presented the draft docket amendments.  On behalf of the City Council, 

they held a public hearing on October 20, 2015 regarding the final docket amendments; and 

written correspondence and testimony submitted prior to the close of the public hearings; and,   

WHEREAS, the Dayton Planning Commission serves the City Council making advisory 

recommendation to the Dayton City Council in the matters of land use, plans, policies, codes and 

standards.  After the close of the public hearing on October 20, 2015, the Dayton Planning 

Commission recommended to the Dayton City Council, the amendments to the Comprehensive 

Plan contained herein; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Dayton City Council recognizes the Dayton Planning Commission’s abilities to 

provide sound advice, together with providing the greatest possible benefits for the citizens of 

Dayton; and,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL: 

Section 1. Under Substantive Authority of Chapter 197-11 WAC, SEPA; Chapter 36.70 RCW, 
Planning Enabling Act; and, Chapter 36.70A RCW, GMA; Ordinance 1873 is hereby amended; and 
the 2014 Dayton Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended with the 2015 Comprehensive Plan 
Update as follows: 

NEW - Signage & Wayfinding Signage Design goal, policy and objective amendments to the 

Economic Development Element (CP15-002): 

GOAL K 

Enhance the economic prosperity of local businesses while improving the quality of life for all 

of its citizens. 

Policy:  K-1 

The City’s presence in the region should be increased by identifying and promoting its own 

unique attractions.  

Policy: K-2  

Unified and attractive wayfinding signage for public and non-profit: offices, services, 

museums, parks and attractions should be established throughout the City.     

Policy K-3 

As a Comprehensive Plan Addendum, the wayfinding signage as shown on the Walla Walla 

Valley Regional Wayfinding and Signage Program constitutes the official “Dayton 

Wayfinding Design Policy” for noncommercial wayfinding signage.   

Policy Discussion: Dayton Wayfinding Signage Design is the design of the “Walla Valley 

Regional Wayfinding Signage Program".  A cohesive design of wayfinding signs throughout 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 3 of 10 

the area from Milton Freewater to Dayton is the goal of the regional program.  This signage 

will help residents, visitors, and passersby find their way to what Dayton and the other Walla 

Walla Valley communities have to offer: area attractions, historic downtowns, museums, 

services, etc.   

Objectives:   

K-3.1 Identify and prioritize needs for new and/or replacement wayfinding signage within 

the City.  

K-3.2 Partner with the Dayton Development Task Force, Dayton Chamber of Commerce, 

Columbia County Hospital District, Columbia County and other non-profit organizations to 

fund and establish wayfinding signage consistent with the Dayton Wayfinding Design Policy, 

Policy K-3. 

Policy K-4  

Standards regulating commercial signage and sign lighting should assure adequate 

identification, while minimizing adverse impacts on the use and enjoyment of adjacent 

property, public right-of-way, and protecting residential areas from negative visual and 

aesthetic impacts.  

Dayton Wayfinding Signage Design Policy addendum is attached as Exhibit A. 

 

Amendment and augmentation to the Utilities Element (CP15-003):  

 
UTILITIES ELEMENT 

INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT 

This element provides discussion about public and non-public facilities and services within of the 
City.  This element addresses the general and proposed location and capacity of all existing and 
proposed utilities, including sewer, water, solid waste disposal and recycling, electrical, natural 
gas, tand telecommunications and natural gas lines. 

Public-Owned Facilities and Services 
The City provides sewer and water utility service within the Dayton corporate limits. These utility 
services in this area are adequate in capacity to meet the six-year capital improvement needs of 
Dayton. This does not take into consideration any facility Facility or service extensions into the UGA 
may be allowed subject to policies contained in the city’s adopted plans and regulations. An 
assessment would likely first need to be conducted before the city could commit to providing 
services. . This assessment would be conducted through other processes, such as the joint UGA plan 
developed with the County 

 

 

 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 4 of 10 

Sewer System 

The City of Dayton is served by a sewage treatment plant and collection system located in an 
incorporated area west by northwest of the City limits. Dayton is completely served by sewer within 
its corporate limits. The original collection system was installed in the late 1930’s and has been 
added to, repaired, and upgraded many times since then.  The system serves an area if 
approximately 610 acres and consists of concrete, clay, and PVC pipe ranging in size from 4 inches 
to 15 inches.[KS1] 

 
The existing sewage treatment plant is a trickling filter system, the bulk of which was constructed in 
1938. This plant was upgraded in 1985 and again in 1998. The plant's average operating  has a 
capacity for 1987 was 0.39 million gallons per day (mgd). This is within the permit discharge 
limitations of 0.46 mgd which was established by the Department of Ecology through the National 
Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). The plant is designed to dispose of residential 
waste by sludge digesters; the digested sludge is then transported to an area from where it is used 
as a fertilizer.Due to the current condition of the plant and more stringent discharge limitations, a 
new wastewater facility plan is currently under development.  This plan will recommend future 
system improvements.[KS2] 
 
As a result of detailed engineering study, the City determined that the figure for discharge from the 
plant was 0.46 mgd. According to the population projections mentioned earlier in the plan, the 
plant's capacity may not be sufficient to accommodate future residential needs. Potential 
commercial and industrial development may require additional wastewater capacity dependent 
upon their size and scale. Because of this and the age and condition of the facility, a major upgrade 
of the facility began in 1998 and has been completed.[KS3] 

 
Water System Plan 
The City of Dayton has completed an extensive update of its Water System Plan (WSP) through 
Resolution 1270_______on September 14______, 2015.  This WSP is a document covering all 
aspects of the City’s water system.  Subsequently on  _____, 2015 the WSP was adopted as part 
of the Utilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan, Ord. _____.   
 
The plan includes projected water demands for the next 20 years (2014-2034), identifies capital 
improvement projects that are needed over the next 20 years to meet the needs of Dayton, and 
policies to guide implementation of the plan. The plan covers physical facilities (wells, reservoirs, 
and waterlines), operational plans, source water protection, financial status of the water system, 
and projected costs of the improvements.  The area covered under this plan is the City’s existing, 
retail, future, and water rights place of use water service areas.   

 

The City of Dayton’s present water system currently provides domestic, commercial, and industrial 
service to approximately 1,481 connections in and around the city as of 2014.1,352 connections in 
and around the city. Based upon three deep wells, a 2 million gallon reservoir, a 220 thousand 
gallon standpipe and extensive distribution lines, the system provides clean pure water to a 
population base of just over 2,500 2,700 people. 

 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 5 of 10 

The three wells are fed by deep basalt aquifers that are capable of producing a maximum of 
approximately 4.2 5.3 million gallons per day (mpdmgd), however, permit water rights 
limitations restricts the maximum production to 2.9 approximately 3.9  mgdmpd.  With the 
addition of booster pumps to Well Nos. 2 and 3, the production of the two wells can be 
increased depending on the size of the booster pump. [KS4] 

 

Well Depth Capacity Metered 

#1 1,303 ft 624 700 gpm yes 

#2 1,445 425 ft 1,114 1,100 gpm yes 

#3 1,180 ft 1,1001,012 gpm yes 

gpm = gallons per minute                      Source: WA State Dept. of Health, 1/16/97. 

 
The WSP includes a number of specific policies which direct City decision making regarding future 
system improvements and service areas.  There are physical limitations to the system that must be 
noted. Of paramount importance is working with the elevation parameters of the gravity flow deliver 
y system to ensure adequate water pressures. The City will provide new water service to customers 
above 1,675 feet mean sea level (MSL) elevation and below 1,560 feet MSL only if a new pressure 
zone is created. To create the pressure zone above 1,675 feet elevation, a City-owned booster pump 
station and isolation valves are required at a minimum. Installing a new reservoir tank may also be 
required. Below 1,605 feet MSL, the City recommends individuals install and maintain a pressure 
reducing value between their water meter and the connection to the house or a building. [KS5] For the 
pressure zone below 1,560 feet MSL, pressure reducing valve(s) (PRV) installation is required within 
the new distribution system.Any development above an elevation of 1,680 feet will require pressure 
pumps if adequate pressure delivery is to be obtained. 

 
Also, extensions of water lines west along the SR 12 corridors will be faced with extreme water 
pressures requiring pressure-reducing devices to be used. Long line extensions will also have to be 
carefully planned to discourage development of looped systems and oppose liner systems (dead-end) 
to avoid potential stale water problems. 

The City of Dayton has completed an extensive update on its existing Water System Plan. 

Solid Waste & Moderate Risk Waste Management  

The 2015 Comprehensive Solid Waste and Moderate Risk Waste Management Plan (SWMP) was 

initially approved under Dayton Resolution 1263 on May 11, 2015.  On  ______, 2015 the plan was 

adopted as part of the Utilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan, Ord. _____.    
 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 6 of 10 

Solid waste collection is provided by the City of Dayton. Currently the City in joint cooperation 
with Columbia County operates a transfer station with compaction capability, which allows 
transportation of solid waste from the two municipal boundaries to nearby Walla Walla landfills. 
This combined plan provides background and guidance for a long-term approach to solid waste 
and Moderate Risk Waste (MRW) management for the City of Dayton, Town of Starbuck and 
Columbia County. The 2015 Plan is intended to provide citizens and decision makers with a guide 
to implement, monitor, and evaluate future solid waste and moderate risk waste activities in the 
planning area for a 20-year period. The recommendations for the 2015 Plan guide local decision 
makers, and identify the need for fiscal responsibility and for local, State and Federal funds and 
grants in order to implement and operate the respective programs. 

 

Columbia County and its designated Department of Public Works was the lead agency responsible 
for developing the updated SWMP. T[KS6]he Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) with city 
representatives participated in the Plan development by providing input and comment on the 
issues and provided recommend the 2015 Plan for adoption by the three jurisdictions.   

 

The 2015 SWMP [KS7]with goals and objectives are included as an augmentation of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Other Public Facilities and Services not operated by the City of Dayton:  

There are several utilities provided in the Dayton area, including the UGA. The continuation of utility 
services concurrent with development impacts is adequate in capacity within the six-year capital 
improvement horizon.  
 
Electrical  
Pacific Power and Light Company provides electrical power to Dayton and a small portion of the rural 
areas adjacent to its corporate limits. Columbia Rural Electric Association Inc serves the remainder of 
the Columbia County. These utility providers indicate that there is a sufficient supply and capacity to 
meet future demands in the City and UGA. 

Natural Gas  
Although there are currently no utilities providing natural gas anywhere within Columbia County, 
there is a potential gas source located west of the mouth of the Tucannon River.  The development 
of this source and conveyance to Dayton is most likely prohibitive. Consequently, the City does not 
anticipate the utilization of this energy source in the near future. 
 
Telecommunications  
Internet, TV, AM & FM radio, land phone, cellular, data, satellite, and cable services are all available in 
Dayton.  Many of these communication services overlap or are bundled together. Telecommunications of 
the future will be primarily driven by technological advances and the needs of the consumer. 
 
Cable Communications - Touchet Valley Television Inc. provides the Dayton community with 
television cable and internet communications as well as the ability to contract with a national 
internet long distance telephone service. 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 7 of 10 

Standard and Cellular - the CenturyLink City is provided provides the City with standard land line 
phone service and internet servicetelecommunication services primarily through Qwest.  According 
to QwestCenturyLink, there are approximately 2200 access lines serving the city.  CenturyLink also 
bundles services offering satellite TV services with multiple [KS8]satellite providers. 
 
Touchet Valley Television Inc. provides the Dayton community with television cable and internet 
communications, web hosting, as well as, the ability to contract with a national internet long 
distance telephone service. 

Inland Cellular provides phone and data plan services to specifically southeast Washington.  In 
addition there are a number of national providers of cellular phone service and data plans: Verizon, 
ATT, Sprint, T-Mobile, and others. The provision of both types of telecommunications to the City will 
be primarily driven by the needs of the consumer as well as technological advances. 

Natural Gas - Although there are currently no utilities providing natural gas anywhere within 
Columbia County, there is a potential gas source located west of the mouth of the Tucannon River. 
The development of this source is most likely prohibitive. Consequently, the City does not anticipate 
the utilization of this energy source in the near future. 

 

Goals and Objectives  
 
Goal A: Sustain the facilities and services to meet existing needs and provide for future expansion. 

Policy – Water Systems Plan:  Policies and objectives contained in the 2015 WSP are policies and 
objectives of this Utilities Element. 

Policy – Comprehensive Solid Waste & Moderate Risk Waste Management Plan:  Policies and 
objectives contained in the 2015 SWMP a[KS9]re policies and objectives of this Utilities Element. 

Community Objective A.2: Where feasible, utility lines should be placed underground. 
 
Goal B: Designate the general location, proposed location and capacity of existing and proposed 
utility facilities in the city and urban growth area. 

Community Objective B.1: Encourage the joint use of utility corridors, provided that such joint use 
is consistent with limitations as may be prescribed by applicable law and prudent utility practice. 

Community Objective B.2: Determine the appropriate location(s) for cellular towers in the Dayton 
area considering benefits provided by the service and aesthetic impacts on the community. 

Community Objective B.3: Where safe and practical, use regional and local power, natural gas, 
and telecommunications corridors for the development of recreational trails, open spaces, 
parking lots or other land use that may provide multiple benefits to the local community or 
neighborhood. 

Community Objective B.4: Where practiced and desired by local property owners or developers, 
locate existing or proposed power distribution lines underground to reduce possible storm 
damage and aesthetic clutter. 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 8 of 10 

Goal C: The City of Dayton's plan for utility facilities will be formulated, interpreted and applied in a 
manner consistent with and complimentary to the serving utility's public service obligations. 

Community Objective C.1: On an annual basis, provide all private utility companies copies of the 
City of Dayton revised 6-Year Capital Facilities Plan, particularly the schedule of proposed road 
and public utility construction projects so that the companies may coordinate construiction, 
maintenance, and other needs in an efficient manner. 

Goal D: Decisions made by the City of Dayton regarding utility facilities within the City will be 
made in a manner consistent with and complementary to local and regional demands and 
resources. 
 
Community Objective D.1: Promote energy conservation measures in building codes including the 
use of insulated roof and siding material, windowpanes and entryways, and other applications in 
accordance with Washington State guidelines. Promote energy conserving practices including the 
use of energy-efficient appliances, temperature maintenance levels, and other activities to reduce 
power demands. 
 
Community Objective D.2: The city should promote the construction and renovation of structures 
utilizing “green building” practices. 
 
Community Objective D.3: Energy development that utilizes wind, hydro  solar and biofuels is 
preferred and shall be encouraged.  These technologies, if sensitively sited, designed, and 
mitigated can be sited without significant, adverse environmental impacts. 
 
Goal E: Additions to, and improvements of, utility facilities will be allowed to occur at a time and 
in a manner sufficient to serve existing and planned growth. 

 
Community Objective E.1: Process permits and approvals for all utility-facilities in a fair and 
timely manner and in accordance with land development regulations that ensure predictability 
and project concurrency. 
 
Goal F: Planning by the City of Dayton for utility facilities development within the city: and urban 
growth area will be coordinated with planning by other jurisdictions for utility facility 
development. 
 
Community Objective F.1: The city shall coordinate the formulation and periodic update of the 
utility element and relevant implementing development regulations with adjacent jurisdictions. 
 
Community Objective F.2: The city shall coordinate, and seek to cooperate with, other 
jurisdictions in the implementations of jurisdictional utility facility additions and improvements. 
Such coordination and cooperation should include efforts to coordinate the procedures for 
making specific land use decisions to achieve. 
 
Policy Discussion 
These policy Additional policy discussion statements are provided for in the Land Use and Capital 
Facilities Plan Elements. 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 9 of 10 

The Dayton 2015 Water Systems Plan addendum is attached as Exhibit B. 

The Dayton Solid Waste Plans are attached as Exhibit C.   

Section 2. Validity. If any section, paragraph, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held 
to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
of this Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that they would have passed this ordinance and 
each section, paragraph, subsection, clause or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more sections, paragraphs, clauses, or phrases may subsequently be found by competent authority 
to be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 

 

Section 3.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective from and after five (5) days after its passage 
and publication as required by Law. 

 

Passed by the City Council, City of Dayton, this _______ day of November, 2015, by a vote of  

______ for, _________ against, and _________ abstaining.   

        

APPROVED: 

  

      _________________________ 

       Craig George, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

 

___________________________  

Trina D. Cole, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_____________________________ 

Quinn N. Plant,               City Attorney 

Menke Jackson Beyer, LLP 

List of attached exhibits: 

EXHIBIT A - Dayton Wayfinding Signage Design Policy 



10/14/15 draft CP update            Ord. ____  Page 10 of 10 

EXHIBIT B – 2015 Water System Plan (WSP) 

EXHIBIT C - 2015 Comprehensive Solid Waste and Moderate Risk Waste Management Plan (SWMP) 

 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 1 of 14 

CITY OF DAYTON WASHINGTON 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING NEW AND AMENDED 2015 DEVELOPMENT 

REGULATIONS, TITLE 6-ANIMAL CONTROL, TITLE 11-ZONING, TITLE 17-CRITICAL 

AREAS AND TITLE 20-COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  IN COMPLIANCE WITH RCW 

36.70A (GMA), AND AMENDING ORDINANCES 1661, 1841, 1873A.   

WHEREAS, the City Council did consider the following Findings, and having fully considered all 

agency comments, public testimony and the entire public record, and; 

WHEREAS, these amendments was identified as docket items as part of a series of 
amendments considered by the City under the umbrella of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and 
Development Regulations Update.  The final docket was approved by the City Council on September 
14, 2015 at their regularly scheduled meeting.   

WHEREAS, the purposes of the docketed development regulation (DR) amendments in this 
ordinance are: 

DR15-001 Pets and livestock allowed 

Remove miniature goats and potbellied pigs as pets; prohibit roosters; reduce the number of 

small production animals allowed in the UR zone; and revise standards for housing of pets and 

small production animals.   After the revisions to the zoning code in 2013, the City received 

numerous complaints regarding pets and small production animals.   

DR15-002 Building height  

Add provisions to calculate building height consistently on sloped lots, as the current definition(s) 

do not identify how maximum height is determined for buildings on sloped property.  

DR15-003   Swimming pools, man-made ponds, spas, and hot tubs 

Add fencing and setback requirements for swimming pools, spas, hot tubs and ponds to 

increase public safety and reduce safety risks for children.  

DR15-004 Kennel & cattery  

Revise kennel & cattery definitions for code consistency.  Dayton Municipal Code (DMC) 6-8.04 

and DMC 11.01.050 definitions are inconsistent. 

DR15-005 Variance correction 

Correct reference in DMC 11-10.060 from “060” to “050” for conditions to grant a variance. 

DR15-006 Vacation rental  

Add as a definition and as a use in residential zones to clarify how vacation rental is allowed.  

 

DR15-007 - Transitional uses in the Central Commercial (CC) and Fringe Commercial (FC) 

Zones for East Clay Street. 

Add the “Clay Street Transitional District (CSTD) Overlay Zone” for properties along the north 

side of E. Clay St. from S. 1st St. to properties on the east of S. 4th.  CSTD will reduce number of 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 2 of 14 

current nonconforming single family homes by allowing residences as a primary allowed use, 

and the CSTD will encourage occupancy of buildings by expanding uses permitted.  

 

DR15-008 -  Hotel Use in Fringe Commercial Zone (FC)   

Allow hotels in the FC zone eliminating confusion as to how existing hotels and motels in this 

zone are defined under DMC 11-01.050.  

 

DR15-009- Volcanic Hazards    

Eliminate reference and requirements for “volcanic hazards” in DMC 17-04 as there are no 

known hazards required to be mitigated or avoided associated with development or use of 

land. 

WHEREAS, this ordinance amends the City of Dayton Development Regulations for zoning, 

critical areas and the comprehensive plan as adopted by Ordinance 1841 and 1873A; and, animal 

controls as adopted by Ordinance 1661.   

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2015, the City of Dayton issued to the Department of Commerce 
its 60 day notice of intent to adopt the 2015 Docket for Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Regulation amendments, and; 

WHEREAS, the City as lead agency issued a State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) threshold 

determination of non-significance (DNS) on September 17, 2015, stating that the series of 

amendments docketed with the 2015 Comprehensive Plan and Development Regulations Update 

would not have a probable significant impact on the environment.  The comment and appeal 

period ended on October 8, 2015.  

WHEREAS, public outreach to the community was performed.  The public was invited to 

submit individual docket applications.  Newspaper notice, notice to agencies, tribes and 

community groups; notice and docket items were posted on the City website; and, notice and 

docket items were available for review at City Hall.  Key stakeholders identified by the City were 

also invited, to review and comment on the amendments.   

 WHEREAS, the Dayton Planning Commission conducted a public meeting on September 15, 
2015 where they were presented with the draft docket amendments.  On behalf of the City Council, 
they held a public hearing on October 20, 2015 for the Final Docketed Amendments; and considered 
best available science, alternatives used by other jurisdictions, written correspondence and 
testimony submitted prior to the close of the public hearing.  

 WHEREAS, the City has considered the "Minimum Guidelines" as set forth in Chapter 365-190 
WAC to update Critical Areas and its decisions have been informed by this guidance, and;  

WHEREAS, the Dayton Planning Commission serves the City Council making advisory 

recommendation to the Dayton City Council in the matters of land use, plans, policies, codes and 

standards. After the close of the public hearing, on October 20, 2015, the Dayton Planning 

Commission recommended the Dayton City Council adopt these amendments and additions to the 

Dayton Municipal Code (DMC).  



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 3 of 14 

 WHEREAS, the Dayton City Council recognizes the Dayton Planning Commission’s abilities to 

provide sound advice, together with providing the greatest possible benefits for the citizens of 

Dayton; and,  

 WHEREAS, the proposed development regulations are necessary to protect the health, safety 

and general welfare of the community and its residents, and; 

  WHEREAS, the proposed development regulations have been found consistent with the 

comprehensive plan and comprehensive plan amendments, and; 

 WHEREAS, the amendments and additions to development regulations have been found 
consistent with State and federal laws, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL: 

Section 1.  Amendments, including additions and deletions.  Under substantive authority of SEPA, 
Ch. 36.70 RCW Planning Enabling Act, and Ch. 36.70A RCW  GMA, Ordinances 1661, 1841, 1873A is 
are hereby amended; and the Dayton Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

DMC 6-8.40 - Only those definitions listed below are amended or added to DMC 6-8.04.  Definitions 

not listed are not amended or repealed. DMC 6-8.40 is amended as follows regarding definitions 

related to catteries and kennels (DR15-005): 

6-8.04. - Definitions.  

7. Cattery: An establishment having four or more cats for the purpose of boarding, breeding, 

buying, grooming, letting for hire, training for fee, or selling. An adult cat is one of either sex, 

altered or unaltered, that has reached the age of six (6) months.  This does not include a 

veterinary clinic where animals are kept only as a necessary part of medical treatment.An 

establishment for boarding, breeding, buying grooming or selling cats for profit. 

13. Kennel:  An establishment having four or more dogs for the purpose of housing, caring 

for, boarding, breeding, buying, grooming, letting for hire, training for fee, or selling.  An 

adult dog is one of either sex, altered or unaltered, that has reached the age of six (6) 

months.  This does not include a veterinary clinic where animals are kept only as a necessary 

part of medical treatment.An establishment having three or more dogs for the purpose of 

boarding, breeding, buying, grooming, letting for hire, training for fee, or selling. 

DMC 11.01.050.  Only those definitions listed below are amended or added to DMC 11.01.050. I.  

Definitions not listed are not amended or repealed. DMC 11-01.050. I. is amended as follows regarding 

definitions related to catteries, kennels, pets, agriculture, vacation rentals and height of structures 

(DR15-001, DR15-002, DR15-004, and DR15-006): 

11-01.050. - DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION OF LANGUAGE 

All words, unless defined below, are defined by the "Webster's New World Dictionary of the 

American Language." As used in this title: 

A.  Words in the present tense include the future; 

B. Words in the singular include the plural; 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 4 of 14 

C.  The word "person" includes an individual, family, household, association, firm, partnership, 

trust, company or corporation; 

D.  Words designating gender include all genders unless otherwise specified; 

E.  The word "lot" includes parcel; 

F.  The word "structure" includes buildings; 

G.  The words "shall," "must," and "will" are always mandatory, and 

H.  The word "may" is permissive. 

I.  The words and phrases set out in this subsection, unless the context of the title 

otherwise requires, shall have the meaning provided herein: 

"Building or structure height" means the average height vertical distance of each façade 
measured from the ground elevation of the finished grade (finished foundation(s)) to the 
highest point of the structure or building roof.   

For sloped property the average of the lowest and highest finished ground elevation along 
each facade shall be considered the point of measurement for the grade.   

Architectural elements that do not add floor area to a building such as chimneys, vents or 
antennae are not part of the height of a building, but all portions of the roof are included.   

Maximum height limits based on the proximity to property lines(s) are measured by 

calculating vertical distance from finished grade of an exterior wall(s) to the top of the wall 

plate for only that portion of the building within the regulated height/setback area from a 

property line.  

"Cattery" means an establishment having four or more cats for the purpose of boarding, 

breeding, buying, grooming, letting for hire, training for fee, or selling. An adult cat is one of 

either sex, altered or unaltered, that has reached the age of six (6) months.  This does not 

include a veterinary clinic where animals are kept only as a necessary part of medical 

treatment. 

"Grade, finished" means the average of the finished ground level at the center of all each exterior 

wallfacades of the building, unless otherwise specified. 

"Kennel /Cattery" means an establishment having four or more dogs for the purpose of housing, 

caring for, boarding, breeding, buying, grooming, letting for hire, training for fee, or selling.a 

commercial establishment which houses, cares for, breeds, raises or sells dogs or cats for 

profit.  Four (4) or more adult dogs or cats or any combination thereof constitute a kennel.  

An adult dog or cat is one of either sex, altered or unaltered, that has reached the age of six 

(6) months.  This does not include a veterinary clinic where animals are kept only as a 

necessary part of medical treatment. 

“Livestock” means domesticated animals, such as horses, cows, goats, and sheep, and fowl.  Swine 

is not allowed to be raised or cared for within the city limits, except that potbelly pigs are 

allowed as pets. 

  



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 5 of 14 

“Pet, household” means a domesticated animal of ordinary species that lives, or is commonly 

known to be capable of living, within the confines of a residence. Animals considered to be 

common household pets include but are not necessarily limited to the following: dogs, cats, 

rabbits, indoor birds, small rodents, nonvenomous reptiles or amphibians and fish. , 

miniature goats, potbelly pigs, and domestic fowl. 

Animals not considered a domesticated animal of ordinary species that lives, or not commonly 

known to be capable of living within the confines of a residence are not allowed as pets.  

Animals considered to be common household pets  not allowed as pets include but are not 

necessarily limited to the following: horses, cows, goats, sheep, swine, donkeys,  full size swine, 

chickens, roosters, endangered or exotic species (not listed above) and any similar species.  

“Production animals –Small” means small domesticated animals, such as chickens, rabbits, or 

other similar animals or fowl, but does not include pets. 

"Single-family house” means a residential building containing one residential dwelling unit 

designed to be owned or rented as a residence and for occupancy [KS1]by one family. 

 “ Vacation rental” - Rental of single family house for vacation use, one or more days by a family 

as defined in this title. 

J.    All definitions contained in this subsection apply to this title only in relation to marijuana 

related use and, except as otherwise revised below, shall have the meanings established 

pursuant to RCW chapter 69.50, RCW chapter 69.51A and WAC 314-55-010, as the same exist 

now or as they may later be amended. Select definitions have been included below for ease of 

reference. … 

DMC 11-03.020. Only those uses listed regarding pets, agriculture and vacation rentals in DMC 11-

03.020 are amended or added.  Uses not listed below are not amended or repealed.  DMC 11-03.020 is 

amended as follows (DR15-001 and DR15-006):  

 DMC 11-03.020  RESIDENTIAL USES 

USE CHART  
 

RESIDENTIAL ZONES 

AR UR 
A. Residential. 
Pets, household - See DMC 11-03.100 for zoning 
limitations on the number of pets 

A2 A2 

Vacation Rental P P 
B. Agricultural Uses. 
General farming 2 P2   A2 
Large Sized Livestock P2 X 
Moderate Sized Livestock2 P2 X 
Small production animals2 P2 A2 
2 See  DMC 11-03.100 for limitations to pets, livestock and production animals 

 A = Accessory Use       P= Permitted Use        X= NOT Allowed 

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Auburn/cgi/defs.pl?def=18-153
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Auburn/cgi/defs.pl?def=18-89


10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 6 of 14 

DMC 11-03.030   Standards listed below are amended or added to DMC 11-03.030.  Standards not listed 

below are not amended or repealed.  DMC 11-03.030 is amended as follows regarding height (DR15-

002) and swimming pools, man-made ponds, spas, and hot tubs (DR15-003): of DMC 11-03.030. 

11-03.030. - Standards—Lot area, height, setback, lot coverage requirements and exceptions.  

The lot areas, setbacks, structure heights and lot coverage required or permitted in residential 

zones, and additional specific standards are listed below: 

  Maximum Height (Hgt.)for structures and buildings (exceptions listed below in A, B F, and G): 

 Buildings, portions of buildings or structures within 10 feet of a 

property line, shall have a maximum height from the finished grade 

to the top of the wall plate: 

10′ Hgt. 10′ Hgt. 

 Buildings, portions of buildings or structures more than 10 feet but 

less than 20 feet from a property line shall have a max. height from 

the finished grade to the top of the wall plate: 

20′ Hgt. 20′ Hgt. 

 Buildings, portions of buildings or structures 20 feet or more from 

the property line shall have a max. height from the finished grade 

to the top of the roof  

35′ Hgt. 35′ Hgt. 

A. The building height limitations above in DMC 11-03.030Chart 120 do not restrict the height 

of water reservoirs, church spires, and other similar structures or facilities. 
B. Cornices, eaves, chimneys, belt courses, leaders, sills, pilasters or other similar architectural 

or ornamental features; open balconies or unenclosed stairways not covered by a roof or 
canopy; and open, unenclosed porches, platforms, or landings not covered by a roof or 
canopy, which do not extend above the level of the first floor may extend or project into a 
required yard up to one foot. 

C. Open, unenclosed patios, terraces, courtyards and decks or similar surfaced areas, not 
covered by a roof or canopy, that do not extend more than 18 inches above the finished 
grade may occupy, extend or project into a required yard. 

D. If the principal residential buildings on both abutting lots have front or rear yard setbacks 
less than the required depth, the yard for the lot need not exceed the average yard depth of 
the setbacks on the abutting lots. In no case shall the front and rear yard setback be less 
than ten feet. 

E. On a steep site, a detached or attached garage may be constructed in a natural bank of 
earth without regard to front yard regulations, provided at least 75 percent of all exterior 
walls, except the front, are underground. 

F. One accessory structure that does not exceed 10 feet in height to the peak of the roof or 120 
feet in floor area may be located within the rear yard setback 

G. Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) shall be designed to preserve or complement the 

architectural design, style, and appearance of the principal structure with not less than two 

hundred twenty (220) gross square feet and no more than eight hundred (800) gross square 

feet of floor area.  If detached from the primary residence, an exterior height of twenty five 

(25) feet to the top peak of the roof is allowed; providing, however, that all other the 

maximum lot coverage, setback and height limit limitations pursuant to DMC -11-03.030 are 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 7 of 14 

met.  All owners must register their ADU with the City’s Planning Department.  An occupancy 

permit must be obtained, if required by building codes. 

H.  Swimming pools, man-made ponds, spas, and hot tubs:  

1.  Setbacks. In-ground swimming pools, man-made ponds, spas, and hot tubs shall have a 

minimum setback of 5’ from a property line and above ground swimming pools, spas, and 

hot tubs may be required to setback greater distances per DMC 11-03.030 setback/height 

restrictions.  

2.  Fencing Enclosures. Private swimming pools, man-made ponds, hot tubs and spas 

containing water more than 24 inches in depth shall be completely surrounded by a fence or 

barrier at least 5 feet in height above the finished ground level measured on the side of the 

barrier away from the pool. Openings in the fence or barrier shall not allow the passage of a 

four-inch-diameter sphere. Gates and doors in such barriers shall be self-closing and self-

latching. Where the self-latching device is less than 54 inches above the bottom of the gate, 

the release mechanism shall be located on the pool side of the gate. Self-closing and self-

latching gates are required and shall be maintained such that the gate will positively close 

and latch when released from an open position of six inches from the gatepost. No existing 

pool enclosure shall be removed, replaced or changed in a manner that reduces its 

effectiveness as a safety barrier. 

Fencing height limitations within front setbacks and for sight triangles are applicable unless 

a variance is obtained to raise the fence height for compliance with this Subsection H. [KS2] 

 

DMC 11-03.100.  DMC 11-03.100 is amended as follows (DR15-001):  

 

DMC 11-03.100    ANIMAL DENSITIES—LIVESTOCK AND ANIMAL RESTRICTIONS. 

A. Livestock and production animal restrictions.  - Livestock and production animals such as 

horses, cows, goats, sheep and fowl that are allowed subject to DMC 11-03.020 and[KS3] as 

follows: 

1. In the AR zone, lLarge sized livestock animals such as a horse, cow or similar-sized 

animals require a minimum of 40,000 square feet of usable pasture area is required for the first 

large animal with an additional minimum usable pasture area of 20,000 square feet per each 

additional large animal.  

2. In the AR zone, mModerate sized livestock animals such as a sheep, goat or similar-sized 

animals totaling 200 pounds or less require a minimum of 10,000 square feet of usable pasture 

for the first moderate sized animal with an additional minimum usable pasture area of 5,000 

square feet per each additional animal. 

3. Small sized production animal such as chickens, rabbits or similar sized animals:  

a.  In the UR zone, a A maximum of 10 six (6) small production animal in the UR zone are 

allowed on a lot 7,200 sf. or larger.  A variance may be requested to allow small production 

animals on a substandard sized lot in the UR zone.  

b.  In the AR zone, a minimum of 100 square feet of useable fenced or enclosed area is 

required for the first small production animal with an additional minimum area of 50 square feet 

per each additional animal. 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 8 of 14 

4. Swine are prohibited. 

5. Roosters are prohibited. 

56. No feedlots or similar dense animal-raising facilities or operations are permitted. 

67. No sShelters, fenced areas or corrals for animals may be built within25 feet or more 

fromof a property line or within 50 feet ofor more from an existing residential building on 

adjacent properties.  Except that, a shelter, fenced area or corral for six (6) or fewer small 

production animals may be located 15 feet from a side or rear property line and 20 feet from a 

front property line.  

B.  Household Pets –  Household pets including but not limited to dogs, cats, indoor birds, small 

rodents, nonvenomous reptiles or amphibians and fish dogs, cats, rabbits, caged indoor birds, 

small rodents, miniature goats, potbelly pigs and nonvenomous reptiles or amphibianssubject to 

the following standards and limitations: 

1. Three dogs per residential lot, regardless of lot size. 

2. Full-size swine Swine and full-size goats are prohibited,[KS4]  

3. Reptiles or amphibians weighing more than 10 pounds are prohibited. 

4. A maximum of three (3) household pets may be housed outside the residence in a shelter 

or fenced area. 

C.  Livestock, small production animals and pets are subject to the provisions of DMC 

Chapters 6.8, Animal Control. 

 

DMC 11-04.020.    DMC 11-04.020 is amended to permit hotels, inns and hostels in the FC zone (DR15-

008). Provisions and uses of DMC 11-04.020 not listed below are not amended or repealed:  

DMC 11-04.020 - Uses 

All uses in commercial zones shall either be permitted as a principal use, as an accessory use or 

as a conditional use, or prohibited as indicated in Use Chart below. If a use is not listed, it is 

prohibited unless the planning director determines that a proposed use is similar in aspects such 

as size, density, effect and impact on surrounding users as a listed use. All restrictions that apply 

to a listed use shall apply to any use which is permitted as a similar use. 

Uses in Commercial Zones ZONES 

CC FC 

A. Commercial Uses.  

 2. HOSPITALITY BUSINESSES 

   Hotels, inns and hostels P XP 

A = Accessory Use       P= Permitted Use        X= NOT Allowed  

 

NEW – DMC 11-07.040 Clay Street Transitional District (CSTD) Overlay Zone is added to Chapter 11-07 

as follows (DR15-007):  

11-07.040 CLAY STREET TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT (CSTD) OVERLAY ZONE 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 9 of 14 

The intent of the CSTD Overlay Zone is to allow flexibility of the type of uses along the north side 

of E. Clay St between S. 1st St. and lots on the east side of S. 4th St. as shown on the CSTD 

Overlay Map adopted under Ord. _____.     The CSTD allows existing single family homes to be 

recognized as permitted by zoning.  The following uses are allowed as “Permitted principal uses” 

in addition to the uses listed for the underlining zones (Central Commercial and Fringe 

Commercial):  

A. Single family residence. 

B. Duplex based on 3600 sf ft. of lot area per dwelling unit.   

C. Governmental Offices. 

D. Schools. 

NEW –  Clay Street Transitional District (CSTD) Overlay Zoning Map as referenced in new DMC 11-07.040 is 

attached as Exhibit 1 (DR15-007).   

DMC 11-10.060.  DMC 11-10.060 is amended as follows (DR15-005): 

11-10.060. - Variance findings of fact.  

Before a variance can be granted or denied, the hearing body must find that: 

A. The application is complete as required in title 10; 

B. The variance requested are within the conditions specified in DMC 11-10.060 DMC 11-
10.050; 

C. The variance is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable use of land, 
building or structure; and, 

D. The granting of any particular variance will be consistent with the general purpose and 
intent of this title, is in compliance with the comprehensive plan and will not be injurious to any 
affected neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

The hearing body may attach conditions to any variance if such conditions are necessary to 
protect the public welfare or the purpose of this title. If the hearing body finds that the applicant 
is not eligible for a variance or does not fulfill the requirements, the hearing body shall state the 
reasons for the denial of the variance. 

 

DMC 17-04.   Code sections listed regarding volcanic hazards are amended or repealed in DMC 17-04 as 

follows (DR15-009). DMC 17-04 sections not listed below are not amended or repealed.   

17-04.001. - Geologically hazardous areas.  

"Geologically hazardous areas" include areas susceptible to erosion, sliding, earthquake, or other 
geological events. They pose a threat to the health and safety of citizens when incompatible 
development is sited in areas of significant hazard. Such incompatible development may not only 
place itself at risk, but also may increase the hazard to surrounding development and use. Areas 
susceptible to one or more of the following types of hazards shall be designated as a geologically 
hazardous area WAC 365-190080(4) (a):  
A. Erosion hazard; 
B. Landslide hazard; 
C. Seismic hazard; 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 10 of 14 

D. Mine hazard; 
E. Volcanic hazard; and 
FE. Other geological events including mass wasting, debris flows, rock falls, and differential 
settlement.  

17-04.015. - Volcanic hazard areas.  

Volcanic hazard areas are areas subject to pyroclastic flows, lava flows, debris avalanche, and 
inundation by debris flows, lahars, mudflows, or related flooding resulting from volcanic activity. 
See WAC 365-190-080(4)(f)(i).  
(Ord. No. 1841, § 2(Att. C), 11-12-2013) 

17-04.040. - Allowed activities—Geologically hazardous areas.  

Activities allowed in geologically hazardous areas:  
A. Erosion and landslide hazard areas. Except for installation of fencing or as otherwise 
provided for in this chapter, only those activities approved and permitted consistent with an 
approved critical area report in accordance with this title shall be allowed in erosion or landslide 
hazard areas.  
B. Seismic hazard areas. The following activities are allowed within seismic hazard areas, 
without preparation of a special study:  
1. Construction of new buildings with less than 2,500 square feet of floor area or roof area, 
whichever is greater; and which are not residential structures or used as places of employment or 
public assembly;  
2. Additions to existing single-story residences that are 250 square feet or less; and 
3. Installation of fences. 
 C. Volcanic hazard areas. The following activities are allowed within volcanic hazard areas:  
1. Construction of new buildings with less than 2,500 square feet of floor area or roof area, 
whichever is greater, and which are not residential structures or used as places of employment or 
public assembly;  
2. Additions to existing residences that are 250 square feet or less; and 
3. Installation of fences. 

 
17-04.063. - Geological hazards assessment.  
A.  Critical area report—Required information. A critical area report for a geologically hazardous 
area shall contain an assessment of geological hazards including the following site- and 
proposal-related information at a minimum: 
1.  Site, land clearing, and construction plans. The report shall include a copy of the site plans for 
the proposal showing: 
a.   The type and extent of geologic hazard areas, and any other critical areas, and buffers 
on, adjacent to, within 200 feet of, or that are likely to impact the proposal; 
b. Proposed development, including the location of existing and proposed structures, fill, 
storage of materials, and drainage facilities, with dimensions indicating distances to the 
floodplain, if available; 
c. The topography, in two-foot contours, of the project area and all hazard areas addressed 
in the report; and 
d. Clearing limits; 
2.  Assessment of geological characteristics. The report shall include an assessment of the 
geologic characteristics of the soils, sediments, and/or rock of the project area and potentially 
affected adjacent properties, and a review of the site history regarding landslides, erosion, and 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 11 of 14 

prior grading. Soils analysis shall be accomplished in accordance with accepted classification 
systems in use in the region. The assessment shall include, but not be limited to: 
a. A description of the surface and subsurface geology, hydrology, soils, and vegetation 
found in the project area and in all hazard areas addressed in the report; 
b. A detailed overview of the field investigations, published data and references; data and 
conclusions from past assessments of the site; and site specific measurements, tests, 
investigations, or studies that support the identification of geologically hazardous areas; and 
c. A description of the vulnerability of the site to seismic and other geologic events; 
3.  Analysis of proposal. The report shall contain a hazards analysis including a detailed 
description of the project, its relationship to the geologic hazard(s), and its potential impact upon 
the hazard area, the subject property, and affected adjacent properties; 
4.  Minimum buffer and building setback. The report shall make a recommendation for the 
minimum no-disturbance buffer and minimum building setback from any geologic hazard based 
upon the geo-technical analysis; 
5.  Incorporation of previous study. Where a valid critical areas report has been prepared within 
the last five years for a specific site, and where the proposed land use activity and surrounding 
site conditions are unchanged, said report may be incorporated into the required critical area 
report. The applicant shall submit a hazards assessment detailing any changed environmental 
conditions associated with the site; and, 
6.  Mitigation of long-term impacts. When hazard mitigation is required, the mitigation plan 
shall specifically address how the activity maintains or reduces the pre-existing level of risk to the 
site and adjacent properties on a long-term basis (equal to or exceeding the projected lifespan of 
the activity or occupation). Proposed mitigation techniques shall be considered to provide long-
term hazard reduction only if they do not require regular maintenance or other actions to 
maintain their function. Mitigation may also be required to avoid any increase in risk above the 
pre-existing conditions following abandonment of the activity. 
B.  Critical area report—Additional technical information requirements for specific hazards. 
Critical area reports for geologically hazardous areas must meet the requirements of this 
chapter. Critical area reports for two or more types of critical areas must meet the report 
requirements for each relevant type of critical area. 
1.  Erosion and landslide hazard areas. In addition to the basic critical area report requirements, 
the technical information for an erosion hazard or landslide hazard area shall include the 
following information at a minimum: 
2.  Site plan. The critical area report shall include a copy of the site plan for the proposal 
showing: 
a. The height of slope, slope gradient, and cross-section of the project area; 
b. The location of springs, seeps, or other surface expressions of ground water on or within 
200 feet of the project area or that have potential to be affected by the proposal; and 
c. The location and description of surface water runoff features; 
3.  Hazards analysis. The hazards analysis component of the critical areas report shall specifically 
include: 
a. A description of the extent and type of vegetative cover; 
b. A description of subsurface conditions based on data from site-specific explorations; 
c. Descriptions of surface and ground water conditions, public and private sewage disposal 
systems, fills and excavations, and all structural improvements; 
d. An estimate of slope stability and the effect construction and placement of structures 
will have on the slope over the estimated life of the structure; 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 12 of 14 

e. An estimate of the bluff retreat rate that recognizes and reflects potential catastrophic 
events such as seismic activity or a 100-year storm event; 
f. Consideration of the run-out hazard of landslide debris and/or the impacts of landslide 
run-out on down slope properties; 
g. A study of slope stability including an analysis of proposed cuts, fills, and other site 
grading; 
h. Recommendations for building siting limitations; and 
i. An analysis of proposed surface and subsurface drainage, and the vulnerability of the 
site to erosion; 
4.  Geo-technical engineering report. The technical information for a project within a landslide 
hazard area shall include a geo-technical engineering report prepared by a licensed engineer or 
geologist licensed by the state that presents engineering recommendations for the following: 
a. Parameters for design of site improvements including appropriate foundations and 
retaining structures. These should include allowable load and resistance capacities for bearing 
and lateral loads, installation considerations and estimates of settlement performance; 
b. Recommendations for drainage and sub-drainage improvements; 
c. Earthwork recommendations including clearing and site preparation criteria, fill 
placement and compaction criteria, temporary and permanent slope inclinations and protection, 
and temporary excavation support, if necessary; and 
d. Mitigation of adverse site conditions including slope stabilization measures and 
seismically unstable soils, if appropriate. 
5.  Erosion and sediment control plan. For any development proposal on a site containing an 
erosion hazard area, an erosion and sediment control plan shall be required. 
6.  Drainage plan. The drainage plan should consider on-site septic system disposal volumes 
where the additional volume will affect the erosion or landslide hazard area; 
7.  Mitigation plans. Hazard and environmental mitigation plans for erosion and landslide hazard 
areas shall include the location and methods of drainage, surface water management, locations 
and methods of erosion control, a vegetation management and/or replanting plan, and/or other 
means for maintaining long-term soil stability; and 
8.  Monitoring surface waters. If the planning director determines that there is a significant risk 
of damage to downstream receiving waters due to potential erosion from the site, based on the 
size of the project, the proximity to the receiving waters, or the sensitivity of the receiving 
waters, the technical information shall include a plan to monitor the surface water discharge 
from the site. The monitoring plan shall include a recommended schedule for submitting 
monitoring reports to the city. 
C.  Seismic hazard areas. In addition to the basic report requirements, a critical area report for a 
seismic hazard area shall also meet the following requirements: 
1.  The site map shall show all known and mapped faults within 200 feet of the project area or 
that have potential to be affected by the proposal. 
2.  The hazards analysis shall include a complete discussion of the potential impacts of seismic 
activity on the site (for example, forces generated and fault displacement). 
3.  A geo-technical engineering report shall evaluate the physical properties of the subsurface 
soils, especially the thickness of unconsolidated deposits and their liquefaction potential. If it is 
determined that the site is subject to liquefaction, mitigation measures appropriate to the scale 
of the development shall be recommended and implemented. 
D.  Volcanic hazard areas. In addition to the basic report requirements, a critical area report for a 
volcanic hazard area shall also meet the following requirements: 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 13 of 14 

1.  Site plan. The site plan shall show all areas within 200 feet of the project area that have 
potential to be affected by pyroclastic flows, lahars, or mud and debris flows derived from 
volcanic events; 
2.  Hazards analysis. The hazards analysis shall include a complete discussion of the potential 
impacts of volcanic activity on the site (for example, inundation by mud flows resulting from 
volcanic activity); 
3.  Emergency management plan. The emergency management plan shall include plans for 
emergency building exit routes, site evacuation routes, emergency training, notification of local 
emergency management officials, and an emergency warning system. 
DE.  Other geologically hazardous areas. In addition to the basic requirements, the planning 
director may require additional technical information to be submitted when determined to be 
necessary to the review the proposed activity and the subject hazard. Additional technical 
information that may be required, includes, but is not limited to: 
1.  Site plan. The site plan shall show all hazard areas located within 200 feet of the project area 
or that have potential to be affected by the proposal; and 
2.  Hazards analysis. The hazards analysis shall include a complete discussion of the potential 
impacts of the hazard on the project area and of the proposal on the hazard. 

DMC 20-01.010.  DMC 20-01.010 is amended as follows: 

DMC 20-01.010 - Established.  

A.  2014 Comprehensive Plan - The 2008 City of Dayton Comprehensive Plan and 

Comprehensive Plan Maps adopted by Resolution 1145 on July 28, 2008; has been recognized 

and amended as the "2014 Comprehensive Plan Update" by Ordinance 1873 adopted on 

February 9, 2015 to comply with the Growth Management Act. The 2014 Comprehensive Plan 

Update is incorporated herein by reference. In part, the update includes the following. A 

complete copy of the updated comprehensive plan is available at the City of Dayton, City Hall. 

1.  Commercial Street Corridor Master Plan (subarea plan); 

2.  Downtown Dayton Historic District (subarea plan); 

3.  Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map — Figure LU-1; 

4.  Existing Land Use Map — Figure LU-2; 

5.  Historic preservation as a new element of the comprehensive plan. 

B.  2015 Comprehensive Plan - The City of Dayton 2014 Comprehensive Plan and 

Comprehensive Plan Maps adopted by Ordinance 1873 on February 9, 2015 is are recognized 

and amended as the "2015 Comprehensive Plan Update" by Ordinance _____ adopted on 

November ___, 2015 to comply with the Growth Management Act.  The 2015 Comprehensive 

Plan Update is incorporated herein by reference. In part, the update includes the following. A 

complete copy of the updated comprehensive plan is available at the City of Dayton, City Hall. 

1.  Dayton Wayfinding Signage Design Policy; 

2.  2015 Water System Plan; and, 

3.  2015 Comprehensive Solid Waste and Moderate Risk Waste Management Plan (SWMP). 



10/14/2015  DR Draft Ord.-_________  Page 14 of 14 

Section 2. Validity. If any section, paragraph, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 

held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions of this Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that they would have passed this 

ordinance and each section, paragraph, subsection, clause or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact 

that any one or more sections, paragraphs, clauses, or phrases may subsequently be found by 

competent authority to be unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective from and after five (5) days after its passage 
and publication as required by Law. 

 

Passed by the City Council, City of Dayton, this ______ day of November 2015,  

by a vote of ____ for, ______ against, and ______ abstaining.   

        

APPROVED: 

 

      _________________________ 

ATTEST:       Craig George, Mayor 

        

___________________________  

Trina D. Cole, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_____________________________    

Quinn N. Plant,               City Attorney 

Menke Jackson Beyer, LLP   

Attached Exhibit: 

EXHIBIT 1 - Clay Street Transitional District (CSTD) Overlay Zoning Map 


	ADP6EC8.tmp
	DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION




